THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

In the Court of Appeals

APPEALS FROM CHARLESTON COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

J.C. Nicholson, Jr., Circuit Court Judge
Tamara Curry, Probate Court Judge

RECEIVED

DEC 11 2015

Appellate Case No. 2014-002028
Circuit Case No. 2011-CP-10-7821

SC Court of Appeals

LISA FISHER.....Appellant

v.

BESSIE HUCKABEE.....Respondent

FINAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

JOHN HUGHES COOPER, ESQUIRE
1476 Ben Sawyer Blvd. Ste. 7
Mount Pleasant, SC 29464
shiplaw@jhcooper.com
843-883-9099; fax 843-883-9335
(Attorney for Appellant)

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

In the Court of Appeals

APPEALS FROM CHARLESTON COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

J.C. Nicholson, Jr., Circuit Court Judge

I. INTRODUCTION

Alice Shaw Baker's intention was that her monies were to be used for Animals and Animal Charities. Appellant and Proposed Personal Representative Betty Fisher filed an action to demonstrate that the Will offered by Respondent Bessie Huckabee was revoked, and to challenge it by way of a Will Contest. Appellant's commitment to ensuring that her beloved great aunt's wishes are honored are at the core of this litigation, and the related Will Contest and appeals herein.

This is one in three appeals related to the orders of the probate court in the *Conservatorship of Alice Shaw Baker*, Probate Case no. 2008-GC-10-088. These orders relate to the Conservator Lisa Fisher's Accountings and will decide the duties owed by a conservator to a conservatee's estate, after her death. These specifically involve orders dated September 28, 2011 appointing a Special Fiduciary, denying Lisa Fisher's Motion to Strike, denying Fisher's Motion for Reconsideration of the Court's Order of September 28, 2011, and ordering that Appellant have 30 days to turn over estate assets to the appointed Special Fiduciary, and ending the Circuit Case. (R. 542, Notice of Appeal)

While these appeals involve to the same tragic factual issues related to Alice Shaw Baker's conservatorship, pending litigation related to a Will contest and revocation of Ms. Shaw Baker's Will, and the safeguarding of her estate assets pending resolution of these matters, each case involves slightly different legal issues. The errors of the Probate Court were not rectified by the Circuit court, so Appellant filed this appeal for this Court's review.

Pursuant to motion by Appellant, this court consolidated the record on appeal, however all briefing will be separate.

Appellant prays that this Court reverse the following Issues on Appeal:

II.
STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

1. Did the Circuit Court's Failure to Consider Appellant's Statement of Grounds prior to Oral Argument, and Failure to reverse the Probate Court's Order amount to an abuse of discretion and a deprivation of due process?
2. Did the Pending Appeal in the South Carolina Supreme Court Preclude the Probate Court from Appointing a Special Fiduciary?
3. Did the Pending Appeal in the South Carolina Supreme Court preclude the Probate Court's Order Appointing a Special Fiduciary, because it attempts to a Review another Judge's Order in Violation of Rule 60 and Decisional Law.
4. Once a Personal Representative is Appointed, Does the Probate Court have Jurisdiction to Appoint a Special Fiduciary under Probate Code § 62-7-704 (e)?
5. Was it an Abuse of Discretion for the Court to Consider Bessie Huckabee's Motion, when her Standing is on Appeal, and when it amounts to a Removal without Cause of Appellant?
6. Did The Probate Court's Proceedings as Protective Proceedings end at Alice Shaw Baker's Death, thereby Precluding the Court from considering the Appointment of a Special Fiduciary?
7. Did the Probate Court Abuse its Discretion in its Failure to Rule on Appellant's Objections to Respondent's Motion to Appoint Special Fiduciary and Made at the Hearing?
8. Was the Probate Court's Finding that Appellant did not have Authority to Pay Expenses on Behalf of the Estate Erroneous, and Demonstrate that there was no Emergent Need?
9. Does the Legal Principal Governing Laches Demonstrate that there is no "Emergent need" under S.C. Code Ann. § 62-7-704(e) and Preclude the Appointment of a Special Fiduciary?
10. Did the Probate Court Abuse its Discretion by Refusing to Strike Respondent's Motion to Appoint Special Fiduciary due to her failure to comply with Rule 11, SCRPC?
11. Did The Probate Court's Abuse its Discretion in Failing to Grant Appellant's Extension of Time to Deliver Proper?
12. Did the Probate Court Err in hearing the Motion to Appoint a Special Fiduciary when the record disclosed that interested parties, including the Attorney General of South Carolina and Heir at Law Betty Fisher, had not received statutory notice of

the Proceedings, under S.C. Code Ann. § 62-3-614 and the United States Constitution, Amends. V and VIX, § 1 and the South Carolina Constitution, Art. 13?

III. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. *Summary of Facts and Pleadings*

On February 25, 2009, Alice Shaw Baker died. (R. 203, Death Certificate) Her great niece, Appellant Lisa Fisher, Esquire, had helped her since involuntary commitment proceedings were initiated without notice to her family, including her niece, Appellant Betty Fisher (“Appellant”). (R. 70, 73, 76, Petitions for Incapacity, Emergency, and Conservatorships, etc.) Though she was already conserved, the family rushed to her side from California. (R. 83, Petition for Appointment of Successor) After a hearing, on October 29, 2008, Lisa Fisher was appointed her guardian and conservator. (R. 28, Order Appointing Lisa Fisher as Guardian and Conservator) After her appointment, Lisa Fisher traveled regularly to South Carolina to visit her great aunt, and ensure her health and well being. (R. 249, P. 250, Motion for Approval of Conservator fees)

Appellant also visited with Ms. Shaw Baker before her death, and knew that she had revoked her Will, and reaffirmed her desire that all of her property benefit these animal charities. (R. 321, P. 342, Motion for Reconsideration)

After Ms. Shaw Baker’s death, Appellant initiated litigation on April 27, 2009 in the Charleston County Probate Court and removed it to the Charleston County Court of Common Pleas on May 13, 2009 (Case no. 2009-CP-10-3010). (R. 219, P. 220, Opposition to Petition for Discharge) These proceedings included Alice Shaw Baker’s family’s attack of the validity of the informal appointment of Respondent Bessie Huckabee (“Respondent”), the Will Contest, the

appointment of a Special Administrator, the effect of Attorney Peter Kouten's ex-parte communication in the lower court proceedings, and bond provisions. (Pursuant to SCACR 201(d), Request for Judicial Notice, Court of Appeals, Case no. 2009-CP-10-03010)

Appellant obtained extensions regarding Ms. Shaw Baker's property from the Probate Court pending resolution by the Supreme Court and proper trial of the Will Contest, and at all times maintained proper control of Ms. Shaw Baker's property.¹

After nearly three years of preservation of the status quo by Appellant's daughter Lisa Fisher, while these matters were before the Supreme Court, Respondent filed her *Motion for Special Fiduciary*. (R. 281, Respondent motion) No affidavits were attached to the motion. (The certificate of service stated that it was served on May 19, 2011, however the letter to counsel was dated May 20, 2011). Respondent knew that the appointment of a Third Party Special Fiduciary, would affect the Estate litigation and was contrary to Ms. Shaw Baker's desires that the monies be used solely for Animal Charities. (R. 321, p. 327)

Appellant filed several pleadings addressing the deficiencies and the impropriety of granting Respondent's motion, including affidavits. These included her *Motion to Strike and Memorandum in Opposition to Bessie Huckabee's Motion to Appoint Special Fiduciary* dated June 1, 2011. (R. 285, *Motion to Strike*). She also filed *Objections by Lisa Fisher to Proposed Order by Bessie Huckabee* dated September 21, 2011. (R. 310, *Objections*), *Objection to Court's Consideration of Huckabee's Motion to Appoint Special Fiduciary* dated August 12, 2011 (R. 313 *Objection to Court's Consideration*), *Objections by Lisa Fisher, Esq. To Second, Duplicate Proposed Order by Bessie Huckabee* dated September 29, 2011 (R. 318), and a *Motion of Reconsideration of Probate Court Order Dated September 28, 2011 Appointing*

¹ As will be evidenced in future proceedings, Appellant has advanced all monies for the protection of Alice Shaw Baker's properties to ensure that no losses are incurred and that her desires that her monies benefit Animal Charities. (See Restatement (Third) of Trusts, § 34)

Special Fiduciary and Lisa Fisher's Opposition to Motion to Appoint Special Fiduciary; Affidavit of Lisa Fisher; Affirmation of Consultation filed October 7, 2011. (R. 321, Motion for Reconsideration)

The court set the Motion for Appointment of a Special Fiduciary for hearing on August 17, 2011. (R. 548, transcript) At the hearing the Court appointed a Special Fiduciary, J. Heyward Harvey, Esquire, without any information about his record, any potential conflicts of interest, and/or his relationship to the parties.

B. Probate Court's Failure to Allow Testimony and Lack of Evidentiary Hearing

At the hearing, Appellant's counsel objected to Respondent's counsel, Peter Kouten,² discussion of contested issues relating to appellant's accounting. (R. 551, Reporter's Transcript, hearing on August 17, 2011, "R.T." 6: 24-25 and 7: 1-12, filed on December 5, 2011)

Over Appellant's objection, the court allowed Respondent's Counsel to discuss the accounts (without allowing him to "go into specificity" but "just generalities"). (R. 551, R.T.8:4-8)

During argument, Appellant's counsel requested authority to have Appellant speak, which the court denied as follows:

"THE COURT: No, this is a motion, and this is really between the attorneys, and I just want to know what your position is, legal position, as to what her legal authority is to still disburse moneys when in fact the conservatorship has -- when she has been discharged, and the only thing the Court has been looking for are the annual accountings."
(R. 553, R.T., 16: 7-14)

² Appellant does not waive her objections to the continuing representation of Peter Kouten as counsel to Huckabee, in light of his non-waiveable representation of Alice Shaw Baker in the underlying conservatorship case where he was court appointed counsel and a visitor.

Without taking any evidence or allowing any testimony, or even taking judicial notice of any proceedings, during further argument concerning the court's lack of jurisdiction, the court stated:

“THE COURT: I am just trying to determine procedurally where we are... I am interested in reference to what is happening with the conservatorship accounts.” (R. 555, R.T., 24: 22-25 and 25: 1-14)

After Respondent's counsel made numerous statements and accusations, Appellant's counsel stated:

“MR. COOPER: Your Honor, without going through all of them, there are a lot of things that Mr. Kouten said in terms of factual representations about the expenditure and so forth, we disagree with and certainly we think are beyond the scope of this hearing.” (R. 558, R.T., 34: 18-23)

Appellant contends that the court's failure to allow Appellant to testify, to require Respondent to present admissible evidence, or to set her *Motions for Reconsideration* on calendar precluded her from responding to the court's concerns and violated *her* Due process rights. Appellant filed an affidavit in her *Motion for Reconsideration*, and Respondent did not object nor did she oppose the Motion. However, the record is silent as to whether the court considered said affidavit. The Probate Court abused its discretion by Ordering the Appointment of a Special Fiduciary, and by denying her objections, the motion to strike, and the motion for reconsideration, and as such, the court's actions all mandate reversal.

C. Probate Orders

The probate court's order dated September 28, 2011 appointing Special Fiduciary made the following *Finding of Facts and Conclusions of Law* in pertinent part:

“This court has jurisdiction over this matter and venue is proper. Respondent Lisa fisher was discharged as Conservator by Order of this Court on May 11, 2009. Movant Bessie Huckabee has argued that requests for account of estate assets have been made on several occasions and these accountings had been denied. Lisa Fisher continues to object to the jurisdiction of this Court with regard to the Estate of Alice Shaw Baker, in part due to the fact that any ruling by this court would intrude on decisions properly to be made in the Supreme Court and/or the Circuit Court. Respondent filed a final accounting on May 26, 2009. Respondent has sought and been granted extensions of time to turn over the estate and has held these estate assets in trust. Respondent has, on June 1, 2011, filed with the Court annual accountings for the estate assets for the years 2009 or 2010.

[¶] In reviewing the 2009 and 2010 accountings, it is determined that there are real property assets in the estate of decedent Alice Shaw-Baker and there are continuing requirements for upkeep and repair on this property. Further, review of the filed accountings indicate that there are needs for authority to deal with third parties with regard to this estate. Bessie Huckabee, as personal representative of the estate of decedent Alice Shaw-Baker (2009-ES-10-0378) is currently respondent to pending probate actions including action to appoint a special administrator. The Court finds an emergent need for authority as to these estate assets.

[¶] Whether or not a vacancy exists as to administration of these assets held in trust, the Court has the authority to appoint a special fiduciary. (South Carolina Probate code 62-7-704(e))

[¶] THEREFORE, based on the foregoing, it is hereby

[¶] **ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED** that Respondent’s motion to strike and motion for extension to turn over estate assets be DENIED and that a special fiduciary be appointed, and it is further

[¶] **ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED** that Respondent’s motion to strike and motion for extension to turn over estate assets be DENIED and that a special fiduciary be appointed, and it is further

[¶] **ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED** that Heyward Harvey, Esquire, be appointed Special Fiduciary for the estate assets of Alice Shaw-Baker, and it is further

[¶] **ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED** that Heyward Harvey receive all assets held by Lisa Fisher within fifteen days of execution of this Order. That Mr. Harvey:

- a. marshal all assets, review accounts and 2009 and 2010 accountings with all the powers and discretions as authorized by law with regard to same.
- b. Seek formal approval of the final accounting and 2009 and 2010 accountings with authority to amend same, if necessary, and further, seek to close the conservatorship estate.
- c. review needs for maintenance, taxes and insurance on real property with authority as fiduciary over same.

- d. maintain authority and control over all estate assets.
- e. keep records of his time devoted to this file and seek approval of his fees through separate order of this Court, and it is further

[¶] **ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED** that Mr. Harvey's appointment shall terminate upon final determination of proper authority over administration of the estate of Alice Shaw-Baker." (R. 55-58, Order Appointing Special Fiduciary)

On or about October 24, 2011, the Probate Court served its *Order Denying Motions for Reconsideration and Opposition of Probate Court Order Appointing Special Fiduciary, Motion to Strike, etc.* which states in pertinent part:

"...Petitioner asks the Court to reconsider the Court's Order, dated September 28, 2011. This motion is based on the Court's order concerning the Motion to Appoint a Special Fiduciary for Conservatorship Assets filed by Bessie Huckabee dated May 20, 2011 by and through her attorney, Peter A. Kouten, Esq. in response to Lisa Fischer [sic] 's Motion for Extension filed May 13, 2011, and her Motion to Strike file [sic] June 1, 2011 by and through her attorney, John Hughes Cooper, Esq. This Court's order denied the Respondents Motion to Strike and Motion for Extension to turn over assets and further ordered that a special fiduciary be appointed. The court further ordered that J. Heyward Harvey, Esq. be appointed Special Fiduciary for the estate assets of Alice Shaw Baker and that Lisa Fischer [sic] within fifteen days turn over these assets to Heyward Harvey, Esq.

[¶] At this time, having reviewed the Motions and the record, the Court hereby denies Respondents Motions. The probate court has jurisdiction of proceedings initiated by interested parties concerning the internal affairs over protective proceedings and guardianship proceedings (South Carolina Probate Code 62-5-102) This Court finds that Lisa Fischer's [sic] fiduciary role as Guardian and Conservator was terminated by this Court's Order dated May 11, 2009. Since Ms. Fischer's [sic] discharge she has held estate assets; has requested and been granted several extensions to perform the same, due to the ongoing litigation in the estate matter. The Court became aware at the August 17, 2011 hearing that Lisa Fischer [sic] has continued to expend funds since Alice Shaw-Baker's death from the Conservator accounts of Alice Shaw Baker.

[¶] The Court finds that Lisa Fischer [sic] has been terminated as Conservator and no longer has the authority to withdraw or pay expenses out of the estate which is being withdrawn without authorization from the Probate Court. The decedent's estate is seized with real property. On the court's own motion, to preserve the estate of Alice Shaw-Baker, this Court is freezing all money and assets in the name of Alice Shaw-Baker.

THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED ADJUDGED AND DECREED THAT:

1. The Motion for Reconsideration of Probate Order Dated September 28, 2011 Appointing A Special Fiduciary, the Motion to Strike and Opposition to the Motion to Appoint A Special Fiduciary, the Renewed Motion for Approval of Fees and Expenses of Guardian and Conservator and the Motion to Set Aside Void Probate Court Order dated September 28, 2011 Appointing A Special Fiduciary is hereby Denied; it is further ordered
2. That Alice Shaw-Baker has funds currently in a number of banking institutions under the name of Alice Shaw-Baker Conservatorship and Lisa Fischer [sic] Conservatorship or individually. It is ordered that the assets in any and all accounts in the name of Alice Shaw Baker Conservatorship, or individually being held with any banking institution shall be frozen until J. Heyward Harvey, Jr., Esq. as Special Fiduciary takes control of said accounts." (R. 61-63, Orders denying)

D. Timely Appeal by Appellant of Probate Orders to the Circuit Court

On October 25, 2011, Appellant filed her *Notice of Intention to file Appeal* pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. 62-1-308(a). (R. 398, *Notice of Intention*) The time for filing said *Notice of Intention to file Appeal* is 10 days after written entry of notice, here October 24, 2011 on the *Motion for Reconsideration*.

In light of the fact that Appellant filed her *Motion for Reconsideration*, said time was extended pursuant to SCRPC 59(f) and SCACR 203(b)(1) by Appellant's *Motion for Reconsideration*. (See also *Elam v. South Carolina Dept. of Transp.*, 361 S.C. 9, 602 S.E.2d 772 (2004) ("A timely post-trial motion, including a motion to alter or amend the judgment pursuant

to Rule 59(e), SCRCP, stays the time for an appeal for all parties until receipt of written notice of entry of the order granting or denying such motion."

Appellant filed her Statement of Grounds on December 9, 2011. (R. 455, Statement of Grounds) Respondent filed her Notice of Appearance on March 20, 2014. (R. 538, Notice) . She failed to file any timely briefing or opposition to the statement of grounds. Thereafter, the court set the matter for hearing on July 16, 2014. (R. 560)

E. Timely Appeal by Appellant of Circuit Court Orders

On or about August 18, 2014, the court issued its Form 4 judgment on Appellant's appeal. The ruling was as follows:

"Statement of Judgement by the Court: Appellant Fisher's appeal, filed on October 25, 2011, came before this Court on July 16, 2014. Upon a review of the case, this Court affirms the probate court's order of September 28, 2011, appointing a Special Fiduciary and denying Lisa Fisher's Motion to Strike and Opposing the Motion Appointing Special Fiduciary, and affirms the probate court's order of October 14, 2011, denying Lisa Fisher's Motion for Reconsideration of the court's order of September 28, 2011. Appellant Fisher has thirty (30) days from the date of this Order to turn over estate assets to the appointed Special Fiduciary, Heyward Harvey."

Thereafter, Appellant timely filed her *Notice of Appeal* on September 19, 2014.(R. 542, Notice of Appeal) Thereafter, Appellant filed her *Motion to Consolidate the Record* for judicial economy and to determine appropriate briefing. This Court granted the *Motion to Consolidate*. The record on all three (3) appeals is the same, however due to the differing Legal issues, the briefing is separate. As set forth herein, Appellant contends these orders must be reversed.

IV.
ARGUMENT

A. Standard of Review

It is well settled that the standard of review for Appeals from the probate court are governed by the provisions of the Probate Code. (*Matter of Howard*, 315 S.C. 356, 360, 434 S.E.2d 254, 256 (1993).) The Probate Code provides that a final order or decree of the probate court may be appealed to the circuit court. (S.C. Code Ann. § 62-1-308 (2009).)

If the proceeding in the probate court is in the nature of an action at law, neither the circuit court nor the appellate court may "disturb the probate court's findings of fact unless a review of the record discloses there is no evidence to support them." (*Neely v. Thomasson*, 365 S.C. 345, 349-50, 618 S.E.2d 884, 886 (2005).)

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