RECEIVED

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court Of Appeals

DEC 18 2015

SC Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM CHARLESTON COUNTY
Court Of Common Pleas

Honorable J.C. Nicholson, Jr., Circuit Court Judge
Tamara C. Curry, Probate Court Judge

Appellate Case No. 2014-002028
Case No. 2011-CP-10-7821

LISA FISHER.....Appellant,

v.

BESSIE HUCKABEE.....Respondent.

FINAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

Peter A. Kouten, Esquire
PO Box 340
Johns Island, SC 29455
843-789-9614
pkouten@gmail.com
Attorney for Respondent

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

ARGUMENTS

1. Did the Circuit Court's Failure to Consider Appellant's Statement of Grounds prior to Oral Argument, and Failure to reverse the Probate Court's Order amount to an abuse of discretion and a deprivation of due process?

An order usually will be deemed interlocutory and not immediately appealable when there is some further act that must be done by the trial court prior to a determination of the parties' rights. Watson v. Underwood 407 S.C. 443 (2014) The lower court's order appointing a special fiduciary is not a final order. In fact, the order appointing a special fiduciary is a safeguard protecting estate assets for future distribution of those to whom the estate will be distributed. For this reason, the order appointing special fiduciary is interlocutory and, therefore, Appellants issues on appeal should be dismissed.

The circuit court, as appeals court in this matter, did not abuse its discretion nor did it deprive the Appellant due process. Here, the Appellant comes to the conclusion that the trier of fact did not consider the statement of grounds. There is no indication by the appellate court that it did not consider the statement of grounds. The trier of fact indicated, in the transcript, that it had not read Appellant's Brief prior to hearing and further indicated that he would do so prior to ruling. Further, Appellant argues that because the appeals court upheld the lower court's ruling, it abused its discretion and somehow deprived the Appellant due process.

Appellant cites Eagles v. S.C. National Bank by stating that the circuit court, sitting as an appellate court, has jurisdiction to make findings in accordance with its own view of the preponderance of the evidence. 301 S.C. 402, 408 (Ct. App. 1990) Appellant fails to mention that Eagles further states that, although the appeals court may make finding with its own view, the standard of review followed in Eagles was whether there is any

evidence which “reasonably supports” the circuit court's findings. Id. (See also Dean v. Kilgore 437 S.E.2d 154 (Ct. App. 1993))

Finally, Appellant argues that the probate court made no findings of fact. The probate court found an “emergent need for authority as to these estate assets.” Conservatorship of Alice Shaw-Baker, Probate Court Order 9/28/2011 p.2, last line

Therefore, the Court should uphold the ruling of the lower court based on findings of fact which reasonably support the lower court’s ruling and Appellant’s appeal on this issue should be denied.

2. Did the Pending Appeal in the South Carolina Supreme Court Preclude the Probate Court from Appointing a Special Fiduciary?

An order usually will be deemed interlocutory and not immediately appealable when there is some further act that must be done by the trial court prior to a determination of the parties' rights. Watson v. Underwood 407 S.C. 443 (2014) The lower court’s order appointing a special fiduciary is not a final order. In fact, the order appointing a special fiduciary is a safeguard protecting estate assets for future distribution of those to whom the estate will be distributed. For this reason, the order appointing special fiduciary is interlocutory and, therefore, Appellants issues on appeal should be dismissed.

Appellant’s other issues on separate appeal have no relationship to the case at bar. The Appellant has filed an appeal with the Supreme Court on an estate matter and said appeal has nothing to do with the assets of the conservatorship of Alice Shaw-Baker. Further, the appointment of a special fiduciary has no effect on the outcome of Appellant’s Supreme Court appeal. As there is no nexus between the appointment of special fiduciary or

conservatorship assets and Appellant's other appeal, the Court should uphold the lower court's ruling and Appellant's appeal on this issue should be denied.

3. Did the Pending Appeal in the South Carolina Supreme Court preclude the Probate Court's Order Appointing a Special Fiduciary, because it attempts to a Review another Judge's Order in Violation of Rule 60 and Decisional Law.

An order usually will be deemed interlocutory and not immediately appealable when there is some further act that must be done by the trial court prior to a determination of the parties' rights. Watson v. Underwood 407 S.C. 443 (2014) The lower court's order appointing a special fiduciary is not a final order. In fact, the order appointing a special fiduciary is a safeguard protecting estate assets for future distribution of those to whom the estate will be distributed. For this reason, the order appointing special fiduciary is interlocutory and, therefore, Appellants issues on appeal should be dismissed.

In response to this issue, the order appointing special fiduciary is not void. Counsel on several occasions discussed the matters of appointment of special administrator or financial intermediary appointment prior to the filing of the motion to appoint special fiduciary. The Appellant failed to appreciate that the motion for special fiduciary was a responsive pleading to the discharged conservator's motion for extension to hold estate assets. Each of the Conservator's motions for extension did not contain the required Rule 11 affirmation and the personal representative was never delivered a copy of the motion prior to the court's approval. Further, the lower court, based on the accountings and arguments of Appellant's counsel found that the appointment of a special fiduciary was emergent.

Courts have the inherent power to do all things reasonably necessary to insure that just results are reached to the fullest extent possible. Ex Parte Dibble 279 S.C. 592 (1983) The probate court has exclusive jurisdiction to determine the need for a conservator or other

protective order until the proceeding is terminated. South Carolina Probate Code §62-5-402(1) Here, the lower court recognized conflicts in the final accounting and the amended final accounting and realized that the discharged conservator was continuing to expend funds. Under the circumstances, the court, in furtherance of protecting the assets of the estate, placed emergent authority in a special fiduciary. For the above reason, the lower court's order should be upheld.

4. Once a Personal Representative is Appointed, Does the Probate Court have Jurisdiction to Appoint a Special Fiduciary under Probate Code § 62-7-704 (e)?

An order usually will be deemed interlocutory and not immediately appealable when there is some further act that must be done by the trial court prior to a determination of the parties' rights. Watson v. Underwood 407 S.C. 443 (2014) The lower court's order appointing a special fiduciary is not a final order. In fact, the order appointing a special fiduciary is a safeguard protecting estate assets for future distribution of those to whom the estate will be distributed. For this reason, the order appointing special fiduciary is interlocutory and, therefore, Appellants issues on appeal should be dismissed.

In response to this issue, the order appointing special fiduciary was based on the accountings, which revealed that Appellant was spending the conservatorship funds after she was discharged. Courts have the inherent power to do all things reasonably necessary to insure that just results are reached to the fullest extent possible. Ex Parte Dibble 279 S.C. 592 (1983) The probate court has exclusive jurisdiction to determine the need for a conservator or other protective order until the proceeding is terminated. South Carolina Probate Code §62-5-402(1) Here, the lower court recognized conflicts in the final accounting and the amended final accounting and realized that the discharged conservator

was continuing to expend funds. Under the circumstances, the court, in furtherance of protecting the assets of the estate, placed emergent authority in a special fiduciary. For the above reason, the lower court's order should be upheld.

5. Was it an Abuse of Discretion for the Court to Consider Bessie Huckabee's Motion, when her Standing is on Appeal, and when it amounts to a Removal without Cause of Appellant?

An order usually will be deemed interlocutory and not immediately appealable when there is some further act that must be done by the trial court prior to a determination of the parties' rights. Watson v. Underwood 407 S.C. 443 (2014) The lower court's order appointing a special fiduciary is not a final order. In fact, the order appointing a special fiduciary is a safeguard protecting estate assets for future distribution of those to whom the estate will be distributed. For this reason, the order appointing special fiduciary is interlocutory and, therefore, Appellants issues on appeal should be dismissed.

In response to this issue, the Respondent has standing as the court-appointed personal representative for the estate of Alice Shaw-Baker. In the event the Appellant brings the will contest to trial and until a court rules that Bessie Huckabee is no longer the personal representative, she has standing and is the person with authority to administer the estate of Alice Shaw-Baker.

Appellant argues that the appointment of special fiduciary is a removal without cause, however, she has been discharged as conservator, which, of itself is a removal. Appellant was granted an extension to hold funds of the conservatorship, in trust, and she has been spending the conservatorship assets without court authority. Appellant has no basis to push forward any idea that she has been wronged. She has been discharged as conservator. For the above reasons, the lower court's order should be upheld.

6. Did The Probate Court's Proceedings as Protective Proceedings end at Alice Shaw Baker's Death, thereby Precluding the Court from considering the Appointment of a Special Fiduciary?

An order usually will be deemed interlocutory and not immediately appealable when there is some further act that must be done by the trial court prior to a determination of the parties' rights. Watson v. Underwood 407 S.C. 443 (2014) The lower court's order appointing a special fiduciary is not a final order. In fact, the order appointing a special fiduciary is a safeguard protecting estate assets for future distribution of those to whom the estate will be distributed. For this reason, the order appointing special fiduciary is interlocutory and, therefore, Appellants issues on appeal should be dismissed.

In response to this issue, the order appointing special fiduciary is not void. Courts have the inherent power to do all things reasonably necessary to insure that just results are reached to the fullest extent possible. Ex Parte Dibble 279 S.C. 592 (1983) The probate court has exclusive jurisdiction to determine the need for a conservator or other protective order until the proceeding is terminated. South Carolina Probate Code §62-5-402(1) Here, the lower court recognized conflicts in the final accounting and the amended final accounting and realized that the discharged conservator was continuing to expend funds. Under the circumstances, the court, in furtherance of protecting the assets of the estate, placed emergent authority in a special fiduciary. For the above reasons, the lower court's order should be upheld.

7. Did the Probate Court Abuse its Discretion in its Failure to Rule on Appellant's Objections to Respondent's Motion to Appoint Special Fiduciary and Made at the Hearing?

An order usually will be deemed interlocutory and not immediately appealable when there is some further act that must be done by the trial court prior to a determination of

the parties' rights. Watson v. Underwood 407 S.C. 443 (2014) The lower court's order appointing a special fiduciary is not a final order. In fact, the order appointing a special fiduciary is a safeguard protecting estate assets for future distribution of those to whom the estate will be distributed. For this reason, the order appointing special fiduciary is interlocutory and, therefore, Appellants issues on appeal should be dismissed.

In response to this issue, the lower court, based on the accountings and statements of Appellant's counsel, found that the appointment of a special fiduciary was emergent. Courts have the inherent power to do all things reasonably necessary to insure that just results are reached to the fullest extent possible. Ex Parte Dibble 279 S.C. 592 (1983) The probate court has exclusive jurisdiction to determine the need for a conservator or other protective order until the proceeding is terminated. South Carolina Probate Code §62-5-402(1) Here, the lower court recognized conflicts in the final accounting and the amended final accounting and realized that the discharged conservator was continuing to expend funds. Under the circumstances, the court, in furtherance of protecting the assets of the estate, placed emergent authority in a special fiduciary. For the above reason, the lower court's order should be upheld.

8. Was the Probate Court's Finding that Appellant did not have Authority to Pay Expenses on Behalf of the Estate Erroneous, and Demonstrate that there was no Emergent Need?

An order usually will be deemed interlocutory and not immediately appealable when there is some further act that must be done by the trial court prior to a determination of the parties' rights. Watson v. Underwood 407 S.C. 443 (2014) The lower court's order appointing a special fiduciary is not a final order. In fact, the order appointing a special fiduciary is a safeguard protecting estate assets for future distribution of those to whom the

estate will be distributed. For this reason, the order appointing special fiduciary is interlocutory and, therefore, Appellants issues on appeal should be dismissed.

In response to this issue, the lower court found that the conservator had been discharged and, as such, she had no authority to act on behalf of the conservatorship. Appellant sought to hold funds of the conservatorship and based her extensions to turn over estate funds on the argument that she was awaiting a court order in the pending petitions. She abused the court's grant by continuing to expend funds which were under her charge. The Appellant is an attorney. She certainly understands the word discharge. The probate court has exclusive jurisdiction to determine the need for a conservator or other protective order until the proceeding is terminated. South Carolina Probate Code §62-5-402(1) Here, the lower court recognized conflicts in the final accounting and the amended final accounting and realized that the discharged conservator was continuing to expend funds. The lower court did not extend authority to the Appellant to act as trustee and Appellant had no authority to act as trustee. Under the circumstances and with authority granted to the probate court under S.C. Probate Code Sections 62-5-416(c) and 62-7-704(e), the court, in furtherance of protecting the assets of the estate, placed emergent authority in a special fiduciary. For the above reasons, the lower court's order should be upheld.

9. Does the Legal Principal Governing Laches Demonstrate that there is no "Emergent need" under S.C. Code Ann. § 62-7-704(e) and Preclude the Appointment of a Special Fiduciary?

An order usually will be deemed interlocutory and not immediately appealable when there is some further act that must be done by the trial court prior to a determination of the parties' rights. Watson v. Underwood 407 S.C. 443 (2014) The lower court's order appointing a special fiduciary is not a final order. In fact, the order appointing a special

fiduciary is a safeguard protecting estate assets for future distribution of those to whom the estate will be distributed. For this reason, the order appointing special fiduciary is interlocutory and, therefore, Appellants issues on appeal should be dismissed.

"Generally, an issue must be raised to and ruled upon by the circuit court to be preserved." Pye v. Estate of Fox, 369 S.C. 555, 565 (2006) (citing Elam v. S.C. Dep't of Transp., 361 S.C. 9, 24 (2004)) Here, Appellant raises the issue of laches. This issue was never raised at the lower court and has not been preserved. For this reason, the issue at bar on appeal should be dismissed.

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